
BOARD OF COUNTY COMMISSIONER’S MEETING 

Monday, April 18th, 2022 

224 Seminary Street 

Kenansville, N.C.  28349 

6:00 p.m. Meeting Called to Order

Invocation  

Pledge of Allegiance 

Approval of Meeting Agenda 

Approval of Minutes – Regular Meeting held on April 4th, 2022 (A) 
Approval of Minutes—Joint Meeting with Trustees of James Sprunt Community  
     College held on April 5th, 2022 (B) 

REGULAR MEETING AGENDA 

CONSENT AGENDA 

1. Budget Amendment Journal Entry Report (C)
2. Tax and Solid Waste Releases- #19294-19297 (D)

ITEMS TO BE MADE PART OF MINUTES 

 Administrative Budget Amendment Journal Entry Report (E) 

REGULAR AGENDA ITEMS OF BUSINESS 

6:05 p.m. Public Comments (limited to three (3) minutes per speaker) 

6:10 p.m.  Davis H. Brinson, County Manager / Clerk to the Board 
Request Board to Schedule a Public Hearing on May 2, 2022 Regarding Board’s 
     Consideration of a Resolution Approving a $2,000,000.00 Tax-Exempt Loan 
     from First Bank to Rose Hill Fireman, Inc. for the Purpose of Constructing a 
     Fire Station for Rose Hill Volunteer Fire Department (F) 



6:15 p.m. Terri Norris, Executive Director of Emerge Ministries 
Request Board to Partner with Emerge Ministries to Produce a July 4th

     Celebration/ Festival at the Duplin County Event’s Center (G) 

6:25 p.m. Angel Venecia, Public Transportation Director 
Acceptance of Additional Grant Funding for Construction of New Public  
     Transportation Facility (H) 

6:30 p.m. Roger Jones, Duplin County Schools 
NC Education Lottery Funds Application – Warsaw Elementary School (I) 

6:35 p.m. Tracey Simmons- Kornegay, Health Director 
Reappointment of a Member of the Board of Health (J) 
2021 Communicable Disease Annual Report & Child Fatality Annual Report (K) 
Acceptance of Communicable Disease Pandemic Recovery Funding (L)
Acceptance of Funding for Food & Lodging Programs and Activities (M) 

6:45 p.m. Amanda Hatcher, Director of Cooperative Extension Service 
Updated Rental Agreement and Policies & Procedures for Use of the Lois Britt  
     Agricultural Service Center (N)

6:45 p.m. Gary Rose, Tax Administrator 
Surplus Property- Parcel 01-E251 (O)
Surplus Property- Parcel 01-E174 (P) 

6:55 p.m.  Davis H. Brinson, County Manager/Clerk to the Board 
Development of a Master Plan for Duplin Commons (Q) 
Animal Care, Control & Adoption Facility (R)
Events Center Paving Project (S)
Public Transportation Facility Construction Project 
Senior Services / Veterans Services Facility (T)

7:00 p.m. Davis H. Brinson, County Manager/Clerk to the Board 
General Announcements 

CLOSED SESSION 
N.C.G.S. 143-318.11 (a) (4) - Economic Development Matters 
N.C.G.S. 143-318.11 (a) (6) – Personnel Matters 

REPORTS (U) 
Airport - March 2022 
Animal Service- March 2022 
Building Inspections- March 2022 



Communications- March 2022 
Cooperative Extension- March 2022 
Planning- January- March 2022 
Soil & Water- March 2022 
Solid Waste- March 2022 
Register of Deeds- March 2022 

ADJOURN 
The Board will adjourn until Monday, May 2nd, 2022 at 6:00 p.m. for a Commissioners 
Meeting in the Administrative Building located at 224 Seminary Street, Kenansville, NC. 



BOARD OF COUNTY COMMISSIONER’S MEETING 

Monday, April 18th, 2022 

224 Seminary Street 

Kenansville, N.C.  28349 

INFORMATION BULLETIN 

TO:   Commissioner Branch  
            Commissioner Dowe  

Commissioner Edwards 
Commissioner Garner 
Commissioner Thompson 

FROM:   Davis H. Brinson, County Manager/Clerk to the Board 

DATE:  Monday, April 18th, 2022 

SUBJECT:    Commissioner’s Meeting 

1. Meeting Called to Order by Chairman Edwards 

2. Invocation given by _________________ 

3. Pledge of Allegiance to the Flag of the United States of America. 

4. Approval of agenda for tonight’s meeting.  Members of the Board and/or the County 
Manager/Clerk to the Board may request to make any changes or additions to the 
proposed agenda. 

RECOMMENDED MOTION: Motion to approve the meeting agenda. 

Motion__________2nd__________For__________Against__________Carried______ 



5. Approval of Minutes – Regular Meeting held on April 4th, 2022 (A)

RECOMMENDED MOTION: Motion to approve the minutes of the April 4th, 2022 
Board of Commissioners meeting as presented. 

Motion__________2nd__________For__________Against__________Carried______ 

6. Approval of Minutes – Joint Meeting held on April 5th, 2022 (B)

RECOMMENDED MOTION: Motion to approve the minutes of the April 5th, 2022 
James Sprunt Community College Board of Trustees and the Board of Commissioners 
joint meeting as presented. 

Motion__________2nd__________For__________Against__________Carried______ 

REGULAR MEETING AGENDA 

CONSENT AGENDA 

1. Budget Amendment Journal Entry Report (C)
2. Tax and Solid Waste Releases- #19294- 19297 (D)

RECOMMENDATION:   Motion to approve the consent agenda. 

Motion__________2nd__________For__________Against__________Carried_________

ITEMS TO BE MADE PART OF MINUTES 

 Administrative Budget Amendment Journal Entry Report (E) 

AGENDA 

1. Public Comments (limited to three (3) minutes per speaker)  

2. Davis H. Brinson, County Manager/Clerk to the Board, will appear before the Board to 
request the Board schedule a Public Hearing on May 2, 2022 regarding the Board’s 
consideration of a Resolution approving a $2,000,000.00 tax- exempt loan from First Bank to 
Rose Hill Firemen, Inc. for the purpose of constructing a Fire Station for Rose Hill Volunteer 
Fire Department. Mr. Wilson has been contacted by Braxton Price, the attorney representing 
the Rose Hill Firemen, Inc. in their efforts to secure a loan to construct a new fire station in 
the Town of Rose Hill, wishing for the Board of Commissioners to adopt a resolution 
approving the aforementioned loan. The lender, First Bank, is requiring as a part of the loan 
process, that the Duplin County Board of Commissioners hold a public hearing prior to the 



Boards consideration of a Resolution approving a $2,000,000.00 tax-exempt loan from First 
Bank to Rose Hill Firemen, Inc. for the purpose of constructing a fire station for Rose Hill 
volunteer Fire Department (also known as Rose Hill Firemen, Inc.) is applicable because of 
Section 150 (e)(3) and Section 147 (f) of the Internal Revenue Coe of 1986, as amended, and 
such approval does not obligate the County or its Board of Commissioners in any way 
regarding repayment of the debt. (F)

RECOMMENDATION: Motion to approve the request to schedule a public hearing on 
May 2, 2022 to receive public comments regarding the Board’s consideration of a Resolution 
approving a $2,000,000.00 tax-exempt loan from First Bank to Rose Hill Firemen, Inc. for 
the purpose constructing a fire station for the Rose Hill Volunteer Fire Department. 

Motion__________2nd__________For__________Against__________Carried_________ 

3. Terry Norris, Executive Director of Emerge Ministries will appear before the Board to 
request the Board to partner with Emerge Ministries to produce a July 4th Celebration/ 
Festival at the Duplin County Events Center. Emerge Ministries has established a Duplin 
County July 4th Committee which has scheduled a second annual July 4th celebration for 
Monday, July 4th, 2022, and is requesting that Duplin County consider becoming a partner in 
putting on the event. According to Mr. Norris, the 2021 July 4th celebration was attended by 
5,000 individuals and was a great success. Due to the extraordinary attendance and the 
response following last year’s event, Emerge Ministries would like to relocate the festival to 
the Duplin County Events Center. Emerge Ministries is requesting that businesses, churches 
and civic groups consider contributions of $500.00 each. Please see the attached letter from 
Emerge Ministries for a more detailed description of the planned festival. (G)

RECOMMENDATION: No requested action.  Discretion of the Board.  

Motion__________2nd__________For__________Against__________Carried_________ 

4. Angel Venecia, Public Transportation Director, will appear before the Board to inform the 
Board about and request acceptance of the Duplin County Section 5339 (b) Discretionary 
Award Local Match Certification.  NCDOT has announced that the amount awarded for the 
Section 5339 (b) discretionary grant to build a new transportation facility has been increased 
from $1,418,921 ($1,135,137- federal & $283,784-local) to $3,020,171 ($2,416,137-federal 
& $604,034- local). Therefore, a new Local Share Certification for Funding must be 
completed. (H)

RECOMMENDATION: Motion to approve the increased local share for the 5339 (b) 
Discretionary Grant in the amount of $320,250 for a total local match of $604,034 to be used 
to construct a new public transportation facility and authorize the Chairman to sign the Local 
Share Certification for Funding document.  



Motion__________2nd__________For__________Against__________Carried_________ 

5. Roger Jones, Special Advisor for Facilities, Transportation and Operations with the Duplin 
County Schools, will appear before the Board to present a North Carolina Education Lottery 
Fund Application for the Board’s consideration. The Board of Education is requesting to use 
funds from the North Carolina Education Lottery’s Public School Building Capital Fund to 
replace the Warsaw Elementary switchgear and evaluate, test, and repair the electrical 
switchgear at Rose Hill Magnolia, North Duplin Elementary, Wallace Elementary, and 
Kenansville Elementary in the amount of $322,000. (I)

RECOMMENDATION: Motion to approve the project to replace the switchgear at the 
Warsaw Elementary and evaluate, test, and repair the electrical switchgear at Rose Hill-
Magnolia, North Duplin Elementary, Wallace Elementary, and Kenansville Elementary and 
to approve the application to release $322,000 from the NC Education Lottery’s Public 
School Building Capital Fund. 

Motion__________2nd__________For__________Against__________Carried_________

6. Tracey Simmons- Kornegay, Health Director, will appear before the Board to request the 
reappointment of Jorge Trujillo as a public member to his 3rd three (3) year term to Duplin 
County’s Board of Health. (J)

RECOMMENDATION: Motion to reappoint Jorge Trujillo to the Duplin County Board of 
Health for a three (3) year term beginning on April 1, 2022 and ending on March 31, 2025. 

Motion__________2nd__________For__________Against__________Carried_________ 

7. Tracey Simmons-Kornegay, Health Director will appear before the Board to present the 2021 
Communicable Disease Annual Report, and the 2021 Child Fatality Annual Report which are 
required by the state to be completed, reviewed, and presented annually to the Board of 
County Commissioners. (K)

8. Tracey Simmons-Kornegay, Health Director will appear before the Board to present the 
Communicable Disease Pandemic Recovery—AA 546 Funding. This funding aids health 
departments in monetary supplementation to expend communicable disease surveillance, 
detection, control, and prevention activities to address COVID-19 and other communicable 
disease- related challenges impacted by the COVID-19 pandemic. (L)

RECOMMENDATION: Motion to accept Communicable Disease Pandemic Recovery 
funds (AA 546) on behalf of the Duplin County Health Department in the amount of 
$140,786 and to approve the associated budget amendment. 

Motion__________2nd__________For__________Against__________Carried_________ 

9. Tracey Simmons-Kornegay, Health Director, will appear before the Board to present a 
request to accept funding for food and lodging programs and activities.  In order to fund a 



portion of local expenditures created by state-mandated Food, Lodging, and Institution (Food 
and Lodging) sanitation programs and activities, the Legislature established a State 
Inspections, Statistics, and Fees Program within the Environmental Health Section. This 
program centralizes public health data, invoices regulated facilities, and distributes the funds 
in accordance with G.S. 130A-248(d). The receipts collected are redistributed to local 
environmental health programs in the form of aid to counties.  

The Agreement Addendum allows for the Local Health Department’s environmental health 
program to implement state-mandated sanitation regulations. The funds from this Agreement 
Addendum are to be used to support local Food and Lodging programs and activities. The 
disbursement and fund purpose are described under “Regulation of food and lodging 
establishments” in North Carolina General Statute 130A-248(d) and under “Disbursements of 
Funds” in North Carolina Administrative Code 15A NCAC 18A .2901. (M)

RECOMMENDATION: Motion to accept Food & Lodging (AA 874) funds on behalf of 
the Duplin County Health Department in the amount of $12,151 and approve the associated 
budget amendment. 

Motion__________2nd__________For__________Against__________Carried_________ 

10. Amanda Hatcher, Director of Cooperative Extension Service, will appear to present an 
updated rental agreement and policies & procedures for use of the Lois G. Britt Agricultural 
Service Center.  The Cooperative Extension Service wishes to update the rental contract used 
for various parts of the Lois G. Britt Agricultural Office Building including the Ed Emory 
Auditorium, the catering kitchen, and conference rooms.  It is being requested that the Board 
approve an increase in the security deposit as well as the rent for the Ed Emory Auditorium.  
The updated contract also addresses concerns primarily regarding the serving of alcohol at 
the facility and the security issues that go along with that.  The County Attorney has 
reviewed and approved the updated agreement. (N)

RECOMMENDATION: Motion to approve the updated rental agreement and policies and 
procedures for the use of the Lois G. Britt Agricultural Service Center. 

Motion__________2nd__________For__________Against__________Carried_________ 

11. Gary Rose, Tax Administrator, will appear before the Board to inform the Board that Parcel 
01-E251, at 111 E. George Street, Warsaw Township, was purchased by Duplin County on 
October 2nd, 2012 for $4,171.00 and the current tax value of the property is $5,500. A final 
bid was received from Edwin Rolando Gomez Roblero on April 1st, 2022 for $2,300. (O)

RECOMMENDATION NO. 1: Motion to accept the bid from Edwin Rolando Gomez 
Roblero Parcel No 01-E251 located at 111 East George Street in the Town of Warsaw, NC; 
Warsaw Township in the amount of $2,300.00 and authorize the County Attorney to prepare 
a deed for the transfer of the property.

Motion__________2nd__________For__________Against__________Carried_________ 



RECOMMENDATION NO. 2: Motion to reject the $2,300.00 bid from Edwin Rolando 
Gomez Roblero Parcel No 01-E251 located at 111 East George Street in the Town of 
Warsaw, NC; Warsaw Township.

Motion__________2nd__________For__________Against__________Carried_________ 

12. Gary Rose, Tax Administrator, will appear before the Board to inform the Board that Parcel 
01-E174, at 412 S. Pine Street, Warsaw Township, was purchased by Duplin County on 
September 5th, 2007 for $2,282.00 and the current tax value of the property is $4,400. A final 
bid was received from Joshua Tree Associates, LLC on February 23rd, 2022 for $1,500. (P)

RECOMMENDATION NO. 1: Motion to accept the bid from Joshua Tree Associates, LLC 
for surplus property Parcel No 01-E174 located at 412 South Pine Street in the Town of 
Warsaw, NC; Warsaw Township in the amount of $1,500 and authorize the County Attorney 
to prepare a deed for the transfer of the property. 

Motion__________2nd__________For__________Against__________Carried_________

RECOMMENDATION NO. 2: Motion to reject the $1,500.00 bid from Joshua Tree 
Associates, LLC for surplus property Parcel No 01-E174 located at 412 South Pine Street in 
the Town of Warsaw, NC; Warsaw Township. 

Motion__________2nd__________For__________Against__________Carried_________

13. Davis H. Brinson, County Manager/Clerk to the Board, will appear to present a request for 
approval of the development of a master plan for Duplin Commons.  Duplin County has 
received grant funding and proposes to build several County buildings/facilities on the 
Campus of Duplin Commons in the near future including: a Public Transportation Facility; 
an Animal Care, Control & Adoption Facility; a facility to c-locate our Senior Services and 
Veteran’s Services Departments; an Emergency Services Complex and a Detention Center.  
The County Manager proposes to contract with Parrish & Partners to develop a master plan 
for Duplin Commons to aid and assist in creating a vision for the what we want the campus 
to look like in the future.  A master plan will help guide governing Board decisions on how 
best to utilize the land available for the construction of buildings and facilities in both the 
near and distant future in order to plan for and control growth of the campus in an integrated 
and coordinated manner.  The proposed master plan services will include at a minimum: an 
introduction and background; data collection/existing conditions; review of past studies; 
alternatives development & analysis; environmental review; implementation & development 
cost estimates; and a conceptual master plan layout.  The total cost for the development of 
the master plan is $25,822.00. (Q)



RECOMMENDATION: Motion to approve to contract with Parrish & Partners to develop a  
      master development plan for the Duplin Commons Campus at a cost of $25,822.00. 

Motion__________2nd__________For__________Against__________Carried_________ 

14. Davis H. Brinson, County Manager/Clerk to the Board, will appear to give an update on the 
project to construct a new Animal Care, Control and Adoption Facility for the Animal 
Services Department.  The Duplin County Animal Shelter is antiquated and too small to meet 
the current operational needs of the County.  This fact was brought to the Board of 
Commissioners attention in early 2018 by the Animal Advisory Board.  In response, the 
Board committed to allowing a new facility to be constructed on the Campus of Duplin 
Commons.  In April 2020, the USDA awarded a $1 million REDLG loan and Tri-County 
EMC awarded another $300K loan.  In August 2020, the Board granted its’ permission to 
advertise for requests for qualifications for architectural and engineering services for the 
design of a new animal care, control and adoption facility.  DWG Architects was selected to 
design the facility in October 2020 and estimated that the new facility would cost $2.5 
million.  At the Board’s annual budget retreat in February 2021, the Board approved an 
appropriation of the additional funding needed to fund the $2.5 million estimate as well as 
another $200K needed for match the REDLG loan bringing the total project budget to $2.7 
million.  DWG put the project out for bid in September 2021.  The bids opened in October 
2021 were all over budget with the lowest bid coming in at $3,672,000.  DWG and the 
County Manager agreed that the project should be put on hold and rebid in early 2022 with 
the hopes that by then the elevated construction prices being blamed on material and labor 
shortages would have decreased. DWG again put the project out for bids in March 2022. The 
bids were opened at 2:00pm on Thursday, April 14, 2022 which was after the agenda packets 
had already gone out to the Board.  The County Manager plans to send out an email late in 
the day on Thursday, April 14th informing the Board of the bid amounts. (R)

RECOMMENDATION: Motion to allocate an additional $   
      from the County’s capital reserve account to fund the construction of a new Animal, Care,  
      Control & Adoption Facility. 

Motion__________2nd__________For__________Against__________Carried_________ 

15. Davis H. Brinson, County Manager/Clerk to the Board, will appear to give an update on the 
Events Center paving project and to request to enter into an engineering and inspection 
services agreement.  Duplin County was allocated a NC Dept. of Agriculture and Consumer 
Services grant in the amount of $500,000.00 in the recently enacted state budget for 
additional parking at the Events Center.  It has been determined that the estimated cost to 
construct a new parking lot adjacent to the Events Center on the northeast side of the building 
along with a paved tractor trailer accessible drive coming off of Fairgrounds Drive is around 
$221,650.  This estimated cost included $170,500 for construction costs; $25,575 for 
engineering associated costs and a $25,575 (15%) contingency.  The estimated cost to 
construct a new 250-300 space parking lot in front of the Events Center in the grassy field 
across Fairgrounds Drive to mirror the parking lot in front of the Events Center is $656,000 
plus $98,400 for engineering associated costs and a $98,400 (15%) contingency for a total of 



$852,800.  Thus, we will not have enough funds to complete both projects.  It is the 
recommendation of the County Manager to move forward with the construction of the new 
parking lot adjacent to the Events Center and the paved access road, and to use any 
remaining state grant funds available to design the proposed new parking lot in the grassy 
field across Fairgrounds Drive in front of the Events Center. (S)

RECOMMENDATION: Motion to enter into an engineering and inspection services 
agreement with The Adams Company for the Events Center paving project pending approval 
by the County Attorney and to allow the County Manager to sign the agreement. 

Motion__________2nd__________For__________Against__________Carried_________ 

16. Davis H. Brinson, County Manager/Clerk to the Board, will appear along with Angel 
Venecia, Director of Public Transportation, to give the Board an update on the progress of 
the project to construct a new Public Transportation Facility on the Campus of Duplin 
Commons. 

17. Davis H. Brinson, County Manager/Clerk to the Board, will appear to request permission to 
advertise for request for qualifications for architectural and engineering services for the 
design of a new facility to co-locate the two (2) departments.  Duplin County received a $2 
million grant in the recently enacted state government budget to help with the construction of 
a facility to co-locate the Senior Services and Veteran’s Services Departments.  The County 
Manager now requests permission from the Board that the Senior Services and Veteran’s 
Services Departments be allowed to solicit requests for qualifications for architectural and 
engineering design services for the Senior Services and Veterans Services Facility. (T)

      RECOMMENDATION: Motion to approve for the Senior Services and Veterans Services  
      Departments to advertise for request for qualifications for architectural and engineering     
      services for the design of a new facility to co-locate the two departments. 

Motion__________2nd__________For__________Against__________Carried_________ 

18. Davis H. Brinson, County Manager/Clerk to the Board, will appear to make general 
announcements and/or updates. 

CLOSED SESSION 
N.C.G.S. 143-318.11 (a) (4) - Economic Development Matters 
N.C.G.S. 143-318.11 (a) (6) – Personnel Matters



REPORTS (U)  
Airport - March 2022 
Animal Service- March 2022 
Building Inspections- March 2022 
Communications- March 2022 
Cooperative Extension-March 2022 
Planning- January- March 2022 
Soil & Water- March 2022 
Solid Waste- March 2022 
Register of Deeds- March 2022 

ADJOURN 
The Board will adjourn until Monday, May 2nd, 2022 at 6:00 p.m. for a 
Commissioners Meeting in the Administrative Building located at 224 Seminary 
Street, Kenansville, NC.

Motion__________2nd__________For__________Against__________Carried__



trisha.hoskins
AGENDA















trisha.hoskins
AGENDA







trisha.hoskins
AGENDA



































































trisha.hoskins
AGENDA



trisha.hoskins
AGENDA



























































trisha.hoskins
AGENDA



trisha.hoskins
AGENDA









trisha.hoskins
AGENDA





trisha.hoskins
AGENDA







trisha.hoskins
AGENDA



trisha.hoskins
AGENDA











trisha.hoskins
AGENDA





















trisha.hoskins
AGENDA















trisha.hoskins
AGENDA













trisha.hoskins
AGENDA









trisha.hoskins
AGENDA









trisha.hoskins
AGENDA































trisha.hoskins
AGENDA













trisha.hoskins
AGENDA



















trisha.hoskins
AGENDA



trisha.hoskins
AGENDA






























































	ITEMS TO BE MADE PART OF MINUTES
	REGULAR AGENDA ITEMS OF BUSINESS
	Commissioners Info Bull 04_18_22.pdf
	ITEMS TO BE MADE PART OF MINUTES

	Agenda 18 April 2022.pdf
	ITEMS TO BE MADE PART OF MINUTES
	REGULAR AGENDA ITEMS OF BUSINESS


